
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

    

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
 

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, June 21, 2016 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 June 14, 2016 Board Meeting 

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

      

Auditor 

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 102  

Human Services 

b. Grant Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for Funding of Security 

& Alarm System  

c. 3rd Amended Agreement w/DSHS for Prevention Services  

d. 1st Amended Contract w/Inter-City Legal Processing & Messenger Service   

e. Agreement w/J Crow for Community Prevention Coordinator 

Juvenile 

f. 1st Amendment w/Aramark Correctional Services for Food Services 

Office of Public Defense 

g. Amending Interlocal Agreement w/City of Richland for Costs of Mental Health Court   

h. Amending Interlocal Agreement w/City of Kennewick for Costs of Mental Health Court   

Personnel 

i. Reappointment of R Knight to the Civil Service Commission Board   

j. Reappointment of A Taylor to the Civil Service Commission Board 

k. Establishing an Adult Drug Court Coordinator Classification and Salary Grade    

Planning 

l. Reappointment of M Kaspar to the Planning Department Commission  

Public Works 

m. Authorizing the Transfer of Capital Equipment from ER&R to County Road    

 

Public Hearing 

 

Short Plat Vacation 2016-001 ~ RJ Lott  

 

Supplemental Adjustment Requests ~ L Wingfield / L Smith-Kelty  

 

 

 

 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

June 21, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

Scheduled Business 

 

2016 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant – Cpt. Vannoy  

 

Authorization to Go Out to Bid – F Bowen 

 Justice Center Roof Replacement 

 Kennewick Annex Parking Lot Modification 
 

WSU Regional Livestock & Forages Update ~ M Ophardt   

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business   
 

 

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, June 14, 2016 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
 
Present: Chairman Shon Small 
  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 
  Commissioner James Beaver 
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Marilu Flores 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 
Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain; Planning Manager Mike 
Shuttleworth; Clark Posey; RJ Lott, Human Services Administrator Kyle Sullivan; Clerk Josie 
Delvin; GIS Manager Mary Phillips; Public Services Administrator Fred Bowen; Shyanne 
Faulconer, Public Relations Coordinator.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of June 7, 2016 were approved. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “u”.  
Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Auditor 

a. Surplus of Personal Property    
BOE 

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 103   
Commissioners 

c. Award of Contract for Official County Newspaper to Tri-City Herald 
d. Memorandum of Understanding for the Allocation of Adult Drug Court & Juvenile Drug Court 

Program Costs 
Fairgrounds   

e. Purchase of Crushed Rock from C & E Trenching  
f. Contract w/Total Energy Management for Installation of 2 Gas Packaged Units  

Human Services 
g. 2nd Amended Agreement w/Service Alternatives, Inc. for Developmental Disability Services    
h. 2nd Amended Agreement w/Ambitions Community Support Services of WA, Inc. for 

Developmental Disabilities Services 
i. Amended Agreement w/WA St Dept of Commerce, Community Services & Housing Division  



 - 2 - 

j. 2nd Amended Agreement w/Goodwill Industries for Developmental Disabilities Services 
k. 1st Amended Agreement w/S Adolphsen for Parent Coalition  
l. 2nd Amended Agreement w/Columbia Industries for Developmental Disabilities Services 
m. 2nd Amended Agreement w/Children’s Developmental Center for Developmental Disabilities 

Services 
n. 2nd Amended Agreement w/The Arc of Tri-Cities for Developmental Disabilities Services 

Information Technology 
o. Purchase of Two Standard Workstations, Laptops & Mobile Printers  

Parks 
p. 2nd Amended Contract w/Bauder Grading & Excavation for Irrigation System @ Fairgrounds 

& Vista Park   
Personnel 

q. Contract w/Praetorian Group, Inc. for Online Training Courses 
r. Agreement w/PricewaterhouseCoopers for Review of Workers’ Compensation & Liability 

Programs 
s. Rescinding Resolution 2016-450, Establishing an Adult Drug Court Coordinator Classification 

Description & Salary Grade 
Public Works 

t. 1st Amended Contract w/Solid Structures for Construction of 3 Storage Sheds 
u. Award of Prosser to Grandview Pedestrian & Bicycle Pathway Improvements to Grade Worx 

 
Public Hearing – Comprehensive Plan Amendment 2016-001 
 
R.J. Lott indicated that an applicant was requesting an amendment to the Benton County 
Comprehensive Plan to change the land use designation of a 40 acre parcel from “Rural Lands 5 
Acres” to “Heavy Industrial” which was held before the Planning Commission on May 10, 2016. 
 
Mr. Lott indicated that it is the Planning Commission’s recommendation to approve CPA 2016-
001 to change the land use designation for Parcel #1-2380-400-0006-000, a 40 acre parcel from 
“Rural Lands 5 Acres” to “Heavy Industrial”. 
 
Commissioner Delvin questioned the activity taking place at that location since 1935 and Mr. Lott 
indicated that there were some agricultural uses on the parcel which would be allowed as heavy 
industrial.  The Planning Commission responded to two concerns addressed before them. 
 
As there was no one to testify, public testimony was closed.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to adopt the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
Application #CPA 2016-001 and approve changing Land Use Maps 4.0 and 4.6 from Rural Lands 
5 to Heavy Industrial and that the Board adopt the Planning Commission’s findings of fact and 
conclusions.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 
 
Public Hearing - Zone Change ZC 2016-001 
 
On May 10, 2016, the Benton County Planning Commission conducted an open records hearing 
requesting to change the zoning classification of a portion of Section 23 of Township 8 North, 
Range 30 East, from Rural Lands 5 to Heavy Industrial. 
 



 - 3 - 

After reviewing the information presented at the public meeting, the Planning staff recommends 
that the Board adopt the Planning Commission’s recommendation, Findings and Conclusions, and 
approve the proposed zone change. 
 
As there was no one to testify, public testimony was closed.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to adopt the Planning Commission’s recommendation, 
Findings and Conclusions, as their own and approve the Zone Change Application ZC 2016-001.  
Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 
 
Public Hearing – Short Plat Vacation 
 
Mr. R.J. Lott indicated that the Planning Department had received a request for the vacation of a 
portion of the “T” shaped turnaround easement on Lot 3 on Short Plat 2864.   
 
Mr. Lott said it was the Planning Department’s recommendation to approve the proposed vacation 
of a portion of the “T” shaped turnaround on Lot 3 of Short Plat 2864, conditioned that a licensed 
surveyor provides a legal description of the portion of the turnaround to be vacated and that it meet 
the Fire Marshal’s requirements. 
 
As there was no one to testify; public testimony was closed.  
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the vacation of a portion of the “T” shaped 
turnaround on Lot 3 of Short Plat 2864, conditioned that the applicants have a licensed surveyor 
to provide a legal description of the portion of the turnaround to be vacated and that it meet the 
Fire Marshal’s requirements located on Lot 3 of Short Plat 2864, records of Benton County.  The 
additional information would need to be submitted to the Planning Department within one year of 
the vacation being conditionally approved or this application would be declared null and void. 
Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 
 
Scheduled Business 
 
Final Plat of Summit View; SUB 2016-002 
 
Mr. Clark Posey brought forward for review and approval the preliminary plat of Summit View, 
which created 360 lots from 517 acres.  The preliminary plat was originally approved subject to 
21 conditions.   
 
Mr. Posey indicated that all conditions had been completed for the Final Plat of Summit View 
Phases 9 & 10 and satisfied and all signatures had been obtained.    It was the recommendation of 
the Planning Department that the Final Plat of Summit View Phases 9 & 10, SUB 2016-002 be 
approved. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to adopt the resolution approving the Final Plat of 
Summit View Phases 9 & 10, SUB 2016-002.   Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, 
the motion carried. 



 - 4 - 

 
Road Department Annual Report & Presentation  
 
Mr. Matt Rasmussen and Robert Blain updated the Board on the following: 
 
**Road Maintenance 
**Design and Construction Management 
**Development and Permitting 
**Fleet Maintenance 
**Asset & Maintenance Management 
**Pits & Quarries 
**Solid Waste Program 
 
Mr. Rasmussen concluded with a budget summary report.  He indicated that the biennial budget 
had been $37 million.  Expenditures for 2015 were $13.3 million with a balance remaining for 
2016 of $23.7 million. 
 
Unscheduled Visitors 
 
Kyle Sullivan, Human Services Administrator updated the board regarding his attendance last 
Wednesday (6/18/16) before the Franklin County Board.  Mr. Sullivan indicated that Franklin 
County discussed the proposed comprehensive behavioral health care plan and indicated that an 
outside attorney had reviewed and responded with additional questions.  It was determined that 
Franklin County would write a letter with their additional questions to Benton County before 
rendering a decision on the proposed contract with Comprehensive Mental Health. 
 
Mr. Sullivan indicated there were questions regarding the potential for conflict of interest with 
Mr. Weaver.  Commissioner Small said he was under the assumption that those kinds of 
concerns were addressed during the last bi county meeting.   
 
Commissioner Delvin asked DPA Ryan Brown if the no-compete clause was addressed with 
language about not having Comprehensive Mental Health.  No one had a copy of the contract 
handy to answer questions on the no-compete clause.  Commissioner Delvin suggested DPA 
Ryan Lukson draft a letter and Ryan Brown said he would have Ryan Lukson contact Franklin 
County to get specifics. 
 
Commissioner Small emphasized that Franklin County had six weeks to review the contract.  
County Administrator David Sparks reviewed the minutes of the April 25, 2016 bi county 
meeting held in Franklin County and said during that meeting, a motion was made approving Mr. 
Weaver for the implementation of the comprehensive behavioral health care plan. 
 
Commissioner Small asked Mr. Sullivan if there were funds available for Benton County to 
move forward if Franklin County decided not to sign the contract. Mr. Sullivan affirmed that 
there were funds. 
 



 - 5 - 

Commissioner Delvin suggested the Benton County Prosecuting Attorney contact the Franklin 
County’s Prosecuting Attorney to resolve the conflict issue and perhaps if there was not an 
answer by next week, Benton County would move forward alone. 
 
Other Business 
 
Commissioner Delvin said he went to the Benton City roundabout on Monday, June 13 for the 
ribbon cutting and would be going to the Columbia Industries dinner this week wherein the 
Clerk’s Office would be receiving an award for their work on their storage project.    
 
Commissioner Delvin brought up last week’s discussion regarding banning travel to Seattle and 
said he recommended sending a resolution stating that Benton County did not support shutting 
down the Columbia Generating Station.   
 
Commissioner Small raised the transgender bathroom issue.  Commissioner Delvin stated that 
while the schools may be mandated by federal law to take action, he saw no immediate need for 
Benton County to move forward at this time. 
 
Adam Fyall introduced new employee, Shyanne Faulconer as the Community Programs/Public 
Relations Coordinator.  He said Ms. Faulconer would be working with community service 
providers, conducting surveys, monitoring contracts, and providing public communications 
outreach and events planning.   
 
Claim for Damages 
 
CC 2016-10: Received on June 8, 2016 from Brian Edwards. 
 
Resolutions 
 
2016 471 Surplus of Personal Property    
2016 472  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 103   
2016 473 Award of Contract for Official County Newspaper to Tri-City Herald 
2016 474 Memorandum of Understanding for the Allocation of Adult Drug Court & Juvenile Drug 

Court Program Costs 
2016 475 Purchase of Crushed Rock from C & E Trenching  
2016 476 Contract w/Total Energy Management for Installation of 2 Gas Packaged Units  
2016 477 2nd Amended Agreement w/Service Alternatives, Inc. for Developmental Disability 

Services    
2016 478 2nd Amended Agreement w/Ambitions Community Support Services of WA, Inc. for 

Developmental Disabilities Services 
2016 479 Amended Agreement w/WA St Dept of Commerce, Community Services & Housing 

Division  
2016 480 2nd Amended Agreement w/Goodwill Industries for Developmental Disabilities Services 
2016 481 1st Amended Agreement w/S Adolphsen for Parent Coalition  
2016 48 2 2nd Amended Agreement w/Columbia Industries for Developmental Disabilities Services 
2016 483 2nd Amended Agreement w/Children’s Developmental Center for Developmental 

Disabilities Services 
2016 484 2nd Amended Agreement w/The Arc of Tri-Cities for Developmental Disabilities Services 



 - 6 - 

2016 485 Purchase of Two Standard Workstations, Laptops & Mobile Printers  
2016 486 2nd Amended Contract w/Bauder Grading & Excavation for Irrigation System @ 

Fairgrounds & Vista Park   
 
2016 487 Contract w/Praetorian Group, Inc. for Online Training Courses 
2016 488 Agreement w/PricewaterhouseCoopers for Review of Workers’ Compensation & Liability 

Programs 
2016 489 Rescinding Resolution 2016-450, Establishing an Adult Drug Court Coordinator 

Classification Description & Salary Grade 
2016 490 1st Amended Contract w/Solid Structures for Construction of 3 Storage Sheds 
2016 491 Award of Prosser to Grandview Pedestrian & Bicycle Pathway Improvements to Grade 

Worx 
2016 492 Amended Comprehensive Plan ~ CPA 2016-001 
2016 493 Zone Change ~ ZC 2016-001 
2016 494 Final Plat of Summit View Phase 9 & 10; SUB 2016-002 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:53 
am. 
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc:  B. Chilton; Auditor; File RANGER

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

"IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 

FUND NO. 0000101.102

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds 

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 102



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM: Dept. TRANSFER TO: Dept. 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

514.810 4201 Postage $5,000 514.810 1905 Temporary Help $5,000

TOTAL $5,000 TOTAL $5,000

Explanation:

Prepared by: T Ranger Date:  6/13/16

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

The Auditor's Office has had many employees out on extended leave causing more temporary help use than normal.

Auditor

Current Expense

102

0000101



WEH
Text Box
b. Grant Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for Funding of Security & Alarm System























































WEH
Text Box
c. 3rd Amended Agreement w/DSHS for Prevention Services











WEH
Text Box
d. 1st Amended Contract w/Inter-City Legal Processing & Messenger Service









WEH
Text Box
e. Agreement w/J Crow for Community Prevention Coordinator



























































WEH
Text Box
f. 1st Amendment w/Aramark Correctional Services for Food Services









WEH
Text Box
g. Amending Interlocal Agreement w/City of Richland for Costs of Mental Health Court







WEH
Text Box
h. Amending Interlocal Agreement w/City of Kennewick for Costs of Mental Health Court







WEH
Text Box
i. Reappointment of R Knight to the Civil Service Commission Board





WEH
Text Box
j. Reappointment of A Taylor to the Civil Service Commission Board





WEH
Text Box
k. Establishing an Adult Drug Court Coordinator Classification and Salary Grade











AGENDA ITEM 
MTG. DATE: June 21, 2016 
SUBJECT: Re-appointment of 
Marjorie Kaspar to the Planning 
Commission  
MEMO DATE: June 14, 2016 
Prepared By: Donna Hutchinson 
Reviewed By: Michael Shuttleworth 

TYPE OF ACTION 
NEEDED 
Execute Contract 
Pass Resolution X 
Pass Ordinance 
Pass Motion  X 
Other  

Consent Agenda X 
Public Hearing 
1st Discussion 
2nd Discussion 
Other  

BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
Ms. Kaspar in the First Commissioner District term on the Benton County Planning Commission 
is up on July 1, 2016. She has indicated her desire to continue serving on the Planning 
Commission.  

SUMMARY 
Ms. Kaspar a member of the Planning Commission is up for reappointment as of July 1, 
2016. 

RECOMMENDATION  
It is the recommendation of the Planning Staff that the Board of County Commissioners 
sign the resolution appointing the above mentioned Planning Commission member to the 
Planning Commission for another four year term to expire on July 1, 2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT None 

MOTION  
The Board approves the re-appointment of Ms. Kaspar to the Benton County Planning 
Commission with her term to expire on July 1, 2020. 

WEH
Text Box
l. Reappointment of M Kaspar to the Planning Department Commission



RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING RE: REAPPOINTMENT OF MARJORIE KASPAR TO 
THE BENTON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION. 

WHEREAS, Benton County Ordinance No. 86 (as amended by Ordinance No. 181), adopted 
pursuant to RCW 36.70, provides for a seven-member County Planning Commission; and, 

WHEREAS, RCW 36.70.080 provides for appointment of Planning Commission members by 
the Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners, upon approval of a majority of the 
Board, from nominations by individual board members, said appointment to result in equal 
representation among the Commissioner Districts; and, 

WHEREAS the term of Marjorie Kaspar in the First Commissioner District expires July 1, 
2016, and 

WHEREAS the First District Commissioner has nominated Ms. Kaspar for reappointment and 
she has stated her desire to continue serving, and the other members of the Board concur 
with the nomination, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chairman of the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners reappoints Marjorie Kaspar, to the Benton County Planning Commission, 
with his term expiring July 1, 2020. 

Dated this 21st day of June 2016. 

___________________________ 
Chairman of the Board 

___________________________ 
Member 

___________________________ 
Member 

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County 

Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 

Clerk of the Board MES/djh



WEH
Text Box
m. Authorizing the Transfer of Capital Equipment from ER&R to County Road





  

AGENDA ITEM:  SPV 2016-001 
MTG. DATE: June 21, 2016 
MEMO DATE: June 10, 2016 
SUBJECT: Short Plat Vacation SPV 
2016-001, Carr 
Prepared By: R.J. Lott 
Reviewed By: Michael Shuttleworth 

TYPE OF ACTION 
NEEDED 
Execute Contract    
Pass Resolution          
Pass Ordinance      
Pass Motion              X 
Other                   

Consent Agenda  
Public Hearing       X 
1st Discussion     
2nd Discussion    
Other                 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
On June 16, 1992, Short Plat 1802 was recorded, which created 4 Lots. Lot 4 was 
further short platted on November 14, 2008, which created Short Plat 3166. Lot 1 of 
Short Plat 3166 contains a 20-foot drainage easement, AF 92-13963. Sean & Angela 
Carr, owners of Lot 1 of Short Plat 3166, have submitted an application requesting the 
drainage easement be vacated off of Lot 1 of the Short Plat.  
 
Owners of property within 300 feet of the outer perimeter of Short Plat 3166 have been 
notified, and all owners of the Lots within Short Plat 3166 have signed the short plat 
vacation application. All concerned agencies such as the Benton County Road 
Department, Benton County Fire Marshal, the Benton County Building Department, 
Kennewick Irrigation District, Benton-Franklin Health District and any other utility 
companies have been notified. The Kennewick Irrigation District has commented that 
water overflow from a nearby irrigation pond may need use of a drainage easement; 
however, this pond is not near the proposed drainage easement vacation. 
 
SUMMARY 
The Planning Department has received a request for the vacation of a 20-foot drainage 
easement on Lot 1 on Short Plat 3166. Benton County Code requires the Board of 
County Commissioners to conduct a public hearing on the proposed vacation and allow 
for public comments regarding the vacation request. The public hearing notice for 
application SPV 2016-001 was published on June 9, 2016, and the public hearing is 
scheduled for June 21, 2016. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is the recommendation of the Planning Department that the Board of County 
Commissioners conducts a public hearing, and based on the testimony received, either 
approve or deny the request. Based on the information received thus far, the Planning 
Department does recommend approval of the proposed vacation of the 20-foot drainage 
easement on Lot 1 of Short Plat 3166. 
 
MOTION 
The Benton County Planning Dept. recommends the following motion: The Benton 
County Board of Commissioners approve the vacation of the 20-foot drainage easement 
on Lot 1 of Short Plat 3166 and subsequently Lot 4 of Short Plat 1802. 

WEH
Text Box
Short Plat Vacation 2016-001 ~ RJ Lott



Return to  
Benton County Commissioners 
P.O. Box 190 
Prosser WA 99350 

RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING REGARDING THE PROPOSED VACATION OF A 20-FOOT 
DRAINAGE EASEMENT EASEMENT ON LOT 1 OF SHORT PLAT 3166, IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF 
SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 28 EAST, W.M. APPLICANT: SEAN & ANGELA CARR PARCEL 
NUMBER 1-2288-101-3166-001, FILE NUMBER - SPV 2016-001 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners did conduct a public hearing on Tuesday, June 21, 2016, 
at 9:00 a.m. in the Commissioners Meeting Room, County Courthouse, Prosser, Washington; and, 

WHEREAS, the signature of the property owners of said application includes all properties affected by 
these easements; and,  

WHEREAS, upon due notice as provided in RCW 58.17.080 and 58.17.090, the hearing before the Board 
of County Commissioners was held on such petition as indicated above; and,  

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners agrees with the summary report from the Benton County 
Planning Department, retained in File No. SPV 2016-001; and, 

WHEREAS, the 20-foot Drainage Easement to be vacated appears on Lot 1 of Short Plat 3166, AF 92-
13963; and, 

WHEREAS, it further appears that the vacation of the above mentioned easement would not unduly 
jeopardize the health, safety, welfare and public good; NOW THEREFORE,  

BE IT RESOLVED, that the vacation of the 20-foot Drainage Easement on Lot 1 of Short Plat 3166 and 
subsequently Lot 4 of Short Plat 1802 in the Northeast Quarter of Section 22, Township 8 North, Range 
28 East, W.M. is hereby approved. 

Dated this 14th day of June 2016. 

Chairman of the Board 

Member 

Member 

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County 

Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 

Clerk of the Board RJL 











 

AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: 06/21/2016     

Subject: Workmen’s 

Compensation 

Budget 

Adjustment 

Prepared by:       L. Wingfield 

               

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract ____ 

Pass Resolution  __X_  

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  _____  

Other   _X____ 

 
 

Consent Agenda            
___  

Public Hearing            _X____  

1st Discussion            _____ 

2nd Discussion            _____ 

Other             _____  

   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

The Notice of Hearing was published in the Tri-City Herald on June 13, 2016, and June 20, 2016.  Lexi will 
review the attached background information regarding current claims and a change in claims.  A public 
hearing will be required. 
 

SUMMARY 
 

See above. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
Recommend the Board of Benton County Commissioners to sign the resolution for the budget adjustment 
and the Transmittal for Request for Budget Adjustment. 
 

MOTION 

 
I move that the resolution for the budget adjustment to the 2015-2016 workmen’s compensation fund, as 
outlined in item 1 in the notice of hearing, be approved. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
$1,165,000 will be transferred from 0503101.291.74.0001, Estimated Beginning Fund Balance to a variety of 
Workmen’s Compensation (Fund 0503101) line items. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

LJW1
Typewritten Text
X

WEH
Text Box
Supplemental Adjustment Requests ~ L Wingfield / L Smith-Kelty



cc: Auditor, Personnel, Commissioners Prepared by L Wingfield 

 RESOLUTION 

  
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY BUDGETS RE: BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS TO THE 2015-
2016 WORKMEN’S COMPENSATION FUND NO. 0503-101, DEPARTMENT 000, 
BUDGET IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,165,000. 
 

WHEREAS, the Personnel Manager has requested a budget adjustment to the Workmen’s 
Compensation Budget (Fund No. 0503-101, Department No. 000) in the amount of $1,165,000 for 
expenditures associated with increased workers compensation claims and costs associated with 
those claims; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on Tuesday, June 21, 2016, at 9:00am at which time the 
public was given an opportunity to speak in favor or in opposition to the proposed adjustments; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board finds said adjustments to be in the best interest of the citizens of Benton 
County; NOW THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
that the budget adjustments to the 2015-2016 Workmen’s Compensation Budget (Fund No. 0503-
101, Department No. 000), in the amount of $1,165,000, be approved per the attached request. 
 
Dated this_______________ day of ________________, 2016. 
 

______________________________            
Chairman of the Board 

 
  

 ______________________________                
Member 

 
 

 ______________________________                
 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 
 
Attest....................................................... 
              Clerk of the Board 
 



Commissioners' Date Stamp:

Fund Name: Fund Number: 0503101

Dept Name: No Department Dept Number: 000

Request Summary

Expenditure Additional Revised

BARS Number Amount Budget

517.670.2201 Administrative Assessment 30,000.00                 70,600

517.670.2203 Supplemental Pension 70,000.00                 193,000

517.671.4150 Medical Reimbursements - Current Expense 850,000.00               1,400,000

517.673.4150 Medical Reimbursements - Juvenile 55,000.00                 125,000

517.681.4151 Disabled Employees 160,000.00               490,000

Total Adjustment $1,165,000

Revenue

BARS Number Amount

0503101.291.74.0001 1,165,000                 

Total Revenue $1,165,000

Basis for Budget Adjustment (Attach Documentation as Appropriate):

Commissioners

o Approved for Hearing

o Denied

CHAIRMAN

Review Notes:  

COMMISSIONER

COMMISSIONER

Due to the increase in workers compensation claims, both in count and costs, additional funds are required.

TRANSMITTAL
REQUEST FOR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

Workmen's Compensation

Item Name

Item Name

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance



 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF HEARING 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN: That the Board of Benton County Commissioners has 

before it budget adjustments to the 2015-2016 Budget. A copy (summary) of these budget 

adjustments will be posted on the Benton County website at http://www.co.benton.wa.us 

or provided upon request by contacting the Personnel Resources Office, 7122 West 

Okanogan Place, Building A, Kennewick, Washington, or by calling 737-2777.  Said 

adjustments are listed as follows: 

 

1. Workmen’s Compensation Fund, Fund No. 0503-101, Dept. 000, in the 

amount of $1,165,000 for increased claims and costs associated with workers 

compensation 

2. Election Reserve Fund, Fund No. 0111-101, Dept. 000, in the amount of 

$100,000 to support the cost of an extra election process 

 

NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN:  That a hearing will be conducted on Tuesday, June 21, 

2016, at 9:00 AM, in the Commissioners’ Board Room, Benton County Courthouse, 

Prosser, Washington, at which time any person may appear and be heard either for or 

against the proposed supplemental appropriation. 

 

DATED at Kennewick, Washington, this 10th of June  2016 

 

By Lexi Wingfield Personnel Manager 

 

http://www.co.benton.wa.us/


Orig  Commissioners 
cc: Auditor, Election Reserve 

Prepared by SmithKelty 

 RESOLUTION 

  
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY BUDGETS RE: BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS TO THE 2015-
2016 ELECTION RESERVE FUND NO. 0111-101, DEPARTMENT 000, BUDGET IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $100,000 
 

WHEREAS, the Deputy County Administrator has requested a budget adjustment to the Election 
Reserve Budget (Fund No. 0111-101, Department No. 000) in the amount of $100,000 for 
expenditures associated with supporting an extra election process; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on Tuesday, June 21, 2016, at 9:00am at which time the 
public was given an opportunity to speak in favor or in opposition to the proposed adjustments; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board finds said adjustments to be in the best interest of the citizens of Benton 
County; NOW THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
that the budget adjustments to the 2015-2016 Election Reserve Budget (Fund No. 0111-101, 
Department No. 000), in the amount of $100,000, be approved per the attached request. 
 
Dated this_______________ day of ________________, 2016. 
 

______________________________            
Chairman of the Board 

 
  

 ______________________________                
Member 

 
 

 ______________________________                
 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 
 
Attest....................................................... 
              Clerk of the Board 
 



Commissioners' Date Stamp:

Fund Name: Fund Number: 0111101

Dept Name: No Department Dept Number: 000

Request Summary

Expenditure Additional Revised

BARS Number Amount Budget

514.401.1588 Temporary Help 25,000                      54,000

514.401.4925 Ballot Assembly & Printing 75,000                      515,000

Total Adjustment $100,000

Revenue

BARS Number Amount

0111101.291.74.0001 100,000                    

Total Revenue $100,000

Basis for Budget Adjustment (Attach Documentation as Appropriate):

Commissioners

o Approved for Hearing

o Denied

CHAIRMAN

Review Notes:  

COMMISSIONER

COMMISSIONER

Due to supporting an extra election process, additional funds are required.

TRANSMITTAL
REQUEST FOR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

Election Reserve

Item Name

Item Name

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: June 21, 2016       
Subject: 2016 Byrne Justice 

Assistance Grant 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson   

   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X _   
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            __X__ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 

The Benton County Sheriff’s Office would like to participate in the 2016 Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 
which will be distributed to Kennewick Police Department and Benton County Sheriff’s Office as agreed 
upon by both parties.  The total award is $23,434 and the breakdown of funds is as follows:  
 
KPD - $14,061 
 
BCSO - $9,373 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The BCSO would like to use the grant funds for the purchase of a moving target system to improve decision 
making and firearms proficiency in the “live-fire” training environment.  The BCSO would also like to 
purchase two (2) hand-held thermal imaging scopes for the purpose of search and detection of persons 
and evidence in low-light and other low visibility situations.  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
Ryan Lukson, DPA 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Authorize the Chairman of the Board to sign the attached Interlocal Agreement between the City of 
Kennewick and Benton County.  The City of Kennewick is requiring Benton County’s signature first and 
they will sign it at their Board Council meeting that evening and get a fully executed copy to us for our 
records.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This is a reimbursable grant through the City of Kennewick, with no cash match requirement.  This grant 
was estimated in the 2015/2016 budget process for $20,404, with $11,361.48 being used in 2015 as 
approved in the 2015 JAG Agreement. Therefore, with Board approval, we may need to go through the 
proper procedure of a public hearing for the consideration of a budget adjustment.  
 
MOTION 
 
The Board of Benton County Commissioners approves the 2016 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 
and hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the Interlocal Agreement between the City of Kennewick and 
County of Benton.  

WEH
Text Box
2016 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant – Cpt. Vannoy



Orig:  Sheriff’s Office 
cc: Auditor, City of Kennewick 

Prepared by: L. Small 

  
RESOLUTION 

  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD TO SIGN THE 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF KENNEWICK, WA AND COUNTY OF 

BENTON, WA FOR THE 2016 BYRNE JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG). 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Sheriff’s Office would like to participate in the 2016 Byrne Justice 
Assistance Grant (JAG) to fund the purchase of a moving target system and handheld thermal 
imagers; and  
 
WHEREAS, the total amount awarded to the City of Kennewick and Benton County was $23,434, 
which both parties agreed to be split between Kennewick Police Department (60%) and Benton 
County Sheriff’s Office (40%); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Kennewick agrees to pay Benton County a total of $9,373 of JAG funds; and  
 
WHEREAS, if there is a balance of grant funding remaining after the purchase a moving target 
system and handheld thermal imagers, the Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the Benton 
County Sheriff’s Office to apply it towards other equipment needed after receiving approval from the 
JAG Grant Committee; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the Interlocal Agreement for the 2016 Byrne 
Justice Assistance Grant (JAG); and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Benton County’s portion of the 2016 JAG award is $9,373; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the term of the attached Interlocal agreement shall commence upon 
signature of both parties and shall terminate September 30, 2017.  
 
 
 
Dated this  __________________ day of ___________________, 2016. 
     
 
 
 
 
 ___________________________              
 Chairman of the Board 
 
  
 ___________________________               
 Member 
 
 
 ___________________________                
 Member 
  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 

Attest....................................................... 
                 Clerk of the Board  



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT- JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) 2016-H2997-WA-DJ 1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 
COUNTY OF BENTON           KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENT 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF KENNEWICK, WA AND COUNTY OF BENTON, WA 

 
2016 BYRNE JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) PROGRAM AWARD 

 
This Agreement is made and entered into this 21th day of June, 2016, by and between 
The County of Benton, acting by and through its governing body, the Benton County 
Commissioners (hereinafter referred to as COUNTY) and the City of Kennewick, acting 
by and through its governing body, the Kennewick City Council (hereinafter referred to 
as CITY), both of Benton County, State of Washington, witnesseth: 
 
 WHEREAS, this Agreement is made under the authority of RCW 39.34 and, 
 
 WHEREAS, each governing body, in performing governmental functions or in 
paying for the performance of governmental functions hereunder, shall make that 
performance or those payments from current revenues legally available to that party; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, each governing body finds that the performance of this Agreement is 
in the best interests of all parties, that the undertaking will benefit the public, and that 
the division of costs fairly compensates the performing party for the services or 
functions under this Agreement; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the total Justice Assistance Grant award to CITY and COUNTY is 
$23,434, which will be split between the Kennewick Police Department (60%) and the 
Benton County Sheriff’s Office (40%), as they are certified as disparate, therefore 
requiring one application and award to be shared between both jurisdictions; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY and COUNTY believe it to be in their best interests to 
reallocate the JAG funds. 
 
  



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT- JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) 2016-H2997-WA-DJ 2

NOW THEREFORE, the CITY and COUNTY agree as follows: 
 

Section 1. 
 

CITY is the fiscal agent for this grant since only one jurisdiction can make application for 
the funds. CITY agrees to pay COUNTY a total of $9,373 of JAG funds.  
 

Section 2. 
 

COUNTY agrees to use $9,373 for a moving target system and handheld thermal 
imagers. 
 

Section 3. 
 

CITY agrees to use $14,061 for less-lethal shotguns.  
 

Section 4. 
 

COUNTY agrees to submit timely quarterly reports to CITY, the grantee/fiscal agency, 
by the fifth calendar day at the end of each quarter (January 5, April 5, July 5 and 
October 5), consistent with, and for the purpose of compliance with, the reporting 
requirements for the JAG program. 

 
Section 5. 

 
Nothing in the performance of this Agreement shall impose any liability for claims 
against COUNTY. 

Section 6. 
 

Any party hereto may terminate this Agreement upon one hundred and twenty (120) 
days notice in writing either personally delivered or mailed postage-prepaid by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, to the other party’s contract representative listed in 
Section 13 for the purposes of giving notice under this paragraph. If this Agreement is 
so terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance rendered or costs 
incurred in accordance with the terms of this Agreement prior to the effective date of 
termination. Termination of this Agreement by any party shall not affect or diminish 
authority exercised prior to delivery of required notice of termination. 

 
Section 7. 

 
Nothing in the performance of this Agreement shall impose any liability for claims 
against CITY. 

 
 
 
 



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT- JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) 2016-H2997-WA-DJ 3

 
Section 8. 

 
Each party to this Agreement shall be responsible for its own actions in providing 
services under this agreement and shall not be liable for any civil liability that may arise 
from the furnishing of the services by the other party. 
 

Section 9. 
 

The parties to this Agreement do not intend for any third party to obtain any right by 
virtue of this Agreement. 

 
Section 10. 

 
By entering into this Agreement, the parties do not intend to create any obligations 
express or implied other than those set out herein; further, this Agreement shall not 
create any rights in any party not a signatory hereto. 
 

Section 11. 
 
The term of this Agreement shall be through September 30, 2017. 
 

Section 12. 
 
By signing below, the signor certifies that he or she has the authority to sign this 
Agreement on behalf of the party, and the party agrees to the terms of this Agreement. 
 

Section 13. 
 
Each party shall have a contract representative. Each party may change its 
representative upon providing written notice to the other party. The parties’ 
representatives are as follows: 
 
Benton County: Sheriff Steve Keane 
City of Kennewick: Chief Ken Hohenberg 

 
Section 14. 

 
The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of its terms and 
conditions. Any oral or written representations or understanding not incorporated in this 
Agreement are specifically excluded. 
 





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  June 21, 2016   

     

Subject: Justice Center 

Campus 

 

Prepared by:       Fred Bowen       

  

Reviewed by: Paul Schut         

      

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 

Pass Resolution  _____ 

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  __X__ 

Other   _____ 

 
 

Consent Agenda            _____  

Public Hearing            _____  

1st Discussion            __X__ 

2nd Discussion            _____ 

Other             _____  

   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
January 26th 2016 the Board of County Commissioners approved Meier Architecture and Engineering to 
complete design and construction documents for re-roofing 5 (five) buildings located at the Justice Center 
Campus in Kennewick.  
 

SUMMARY 
Meier’s has completed the designs for re-roofing the Justice Center (Courts), Justice Center 
(Administration), lower connecting walkway to the jail, the Jail, Health Department and the Coroner’s Office 
totaling 153,576 sf.   

 

RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize the Public Services Administrator to proceed with advertising for bids from qualified Contractor’s 
for the re-roofing of the 5 (five) structures at the Justice Center Campus in Kennewick.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
153,576 sf. @ ($25.97 per sf) = $3,990,000 w/tax.  
 

MOTION 
I move to authorize the Public Services Administrator to proceed with advertising for bids from qualified 
Contractor’s for the re-roofing of the 5 (five) structures at the Justice Center Campus in Kennewick.  
 

WEH
Text Box
Justice Center Roof Replacement



 

AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: June 21, 2016         

  

Subject:          Parking Lot, 

                        Kennewick Annex 

 

Prepared by:  Fred Bowen  

        

Reviewed by:                  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 

Pass Resolution  ___  

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  __X___  

Other   _____ 

 
 

Consent Agenda            _____  

Public Hearing            _____  

1st Discussion            __X___ 

2nd Discussion            _____ 

Other             _____  

   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

The South parking lot at the Kennewick Annex, a primary parking lot, is not looped. There is only one entrance and exit, and 

turnaround space is limited causing traffic congestion.  

 

SUMMARY 

 
By removing a portion of the center island landscaping near the East end of the lot and constructing a ramp leading back to the 

main entrance would allow traffic to circle through the parking lot and exit out, reducing traffic congestion.  

Improvements would also include resealing the surface pavement, restriping, a new light pole and adding a drive thru drop box 

for the Auditor and Treasures offices.   

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
The County Commissioner approve County Roads Department to move forward with the advertisements for bids to 

construct the proposed modifications to the Kennewick Annex Parking lot.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Estimated project costs, $57,000 
 

MOTION 
 
I move to authorize the County Roads Department to move forward with advertisement for bids to construct the 

proposed modifications to the Kennewick Annex Parking lot.  

 

 

WEH
Text Box
Kennewick Annex Parking Lot Modification




	CA - Planning l.pdf
	AGENDA ITEM
	MEMO DATE: June 14, 2016
	Prepared By: Donna Hutchinson
	Reviewed By: Michael Shuttleworth
	Consent Agenda X


	PH - 1 SPV 2016-001.pdf
	Pass Ordinance     
	MOTION

	Timed - 2 Justice Center Roof.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY
	MOTION

	Timed - 3 Annex Parking Lot.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY
	MOTION

	Timed - 3 Annex Parking Lot.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY
	MOTION




